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STIPULATION RE FACTS, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND 
In the Matte, of: DISPOSITION AND ORDER APPROVING 
KEVIN GANG LONG 

ACTUAL SUSPENSION 
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|_‘_] PREVIOUS STIPULATION REJECTED 
A Member of the State Bar of California 
(Respondent) 

Note: All infonnaflon required by this form and any addltlonal Information which cannot be provided in the space provided, must he set forth In an attachment to this sflpulatlon under speclfic headings, a.g., "Facts," “DlsmIssals." “conclyslons of Law," “Supporting Authority.” etc. 

A. Parties'Acknowlodgmon1s: 

(1) Respondent is a member of the State Bar of Callfomla. admitted Juno 4. 1998. 
(2) The parties agree to be bound by the factual sfipulations contained herein even if conclusions of law or 

disposition are rejected or changed by the Supreme court. 

(3) All investigations or proceedings listed by case number in the caption of this stipulation are entirely resolved by this stipulation and are deemed consolidated. Dismissed charge()Ioount(s) are listed under‘DlsmIssals." The 
stipulation consists of 18 pages, not Including the order. 

(4) A statement of acts or amissions acknowledged by Respondent as cause or causes for discipline is Included under ‘Facts.’ 

(5) Conclusions of law, drawn from and specifically referring to the facts are also Included under ‘Conclusions of Law.‘ 

' 
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(6) The parties must include supporting authority for the recommended level of discipline under the heading 
‘Supporting Authority." 

(7) No more than 30 days prior to the filing of thls stipulation. Respondent has been advised in writing of any 
pending investlgationlproceeding not resolved by this stipulation. except for criminal investigations. 

(8) Payment of Disciplinary Costs—Respondent acknowledges the provisions of Bus. & Prof. Code §§6086.10 & 
6140.7. It is recommended that (check one option only): 
it Costs be awarded no the State Bar in accordance with Business and Professions Code section 6086.10, 

and are enforceable both as provided in Business and Professions Code section 6140.7 and as a money 
judgment Unless the time for payment of discipline costs is extended pursuant to subdivision (c) of 
section 6086.10, costs assessed aainst a member who is actually suspended or disbarred must be paid 
as a condition of reinstatement or return to active status. 

[I Costs be awarded to the State Bar in accordance with Business and Professions Code section 6086.10 
’ and are enforceable both as provided in Business and Professions Code section 6140.7 and as a money 

judgment. SELECT ONE of the costs must be paid with Respondent's membership fees for each 
of the following years: 

If Respondent fails to pay any installment as descfibed above. or as may be modified in writing by the 
State Bar or the State Bar Court. the remaining balance will be due and payable immediately. 

[I Costs are; waived in part as set forth in a separate attachment éntitled “Partial Waiver of Costs.“ 

D Costs arg gntirely waived. 

B. Aggravatlng Circumstances [Standards for Attorney Sanctions for Professional 
Misconduct, standards 1.2(h) & 1.5]. Facts supporting agravafing circumstances are 
required. 

(1) IX Prior reco_rd of discipline: 

(a) E State Bar Court case # of prior case: 14-O-01271. See page 12, and Exhiblt1, 13 pages. 

(b) Date prior discipline effective: January 16, 2015 

(c) IZI Rules of Professional Conduct! State Bar Act violations: Rules of Professlonal conduct, rule 
3-700(A)(2) 

(d) E Degree of prior discipline: Private reproval 

(e) IZ If Respondent has two or more incidents of prior discipline, use space provided below. 
State Bar Court case # of prior case: 16-H-11300. See page 12, and Exhibit 2, 14 pages. 
Date.pn'or discipline effective: July 29. 2016 

Rules of Pmfessional Conductlstate Bar Act violations: Rules of Professional Conduct, rule 1-110 

Degree of prior discipline: Public reproval 
‘ 

(2) El Intantionalmad Falthmlshonesty: Respondent's misconduct was dishonest. intentional. or surrounded 
by. or followed by bad faith. 
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(3) 

<4) 

(5) 

(6) 

(7) 

(8) 

(9) 

(10) 

(11) 

(12) 

(13) 

(14) 

(15) 

Cl 

El 

EIEICID 

>2 

EJEJDEI 

Cl 

El 

Misrepresentation: Respondent's misconduct was surrounded by. or followed by, misrepresentation. 

Concealment: Respondent's misconduct was surrounded by, or followed by. concealment. 
Overreachlng: Respondent's misconduct was surrounded by, or followed by. overreaching. 
uncharged Vlolatlons: Respondent's conduct involves uncharged violations of the Business and 
Professions Code, or the Rules of Professional Conduct. 

Trust Violation: Trust funds or property were involved and Respondent refused or was unable to account 
to the client or person who was the object of the misconduct for improper conduct toward said funds or 
Pf0DeflV- 

Harm: Respondent's misconduct hrmed significantly a client, the public. or the administration of justice. 

Indifference: Respondent demonstrated indifference toward rectification of or atonement for the oonsequenqes of Respondenfs misconduct See page 12. 
CandorlLack of cooperaflon: Respondent displayed a lack of candor and cooperation to victims of Respondent's misconduct, or to the State Bar during disciplinary investigations or proceedings. 

Multiple Acts: Respondents current misconduct evidences muuiple acts of wrongdoing. 
Pattern: Respondent's current misconduct demonstrates a pauem of misconduct. 
Resututlon: Respondent failed to make restitution. 

Vulnerable yictim: The victim(s) of Respondent's misconduct waslwere highly vulnerable. 
No aggravating circumstances are involved. 

Additional agravatlng circumstances: 

C. Mitigating Circumstances [Standards 1.2(i) & 1.6]. Facts supporting mitigating 
circumstances are required. 

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

El 

Ll 

E]

D

D 

No Prior Dlsclpllne: Respondent has no prior record of discipline over many years of practice coupled 
with present misconduct which is not likely to recur. 

No Harm: Respondent did not hann the client. the public, or the administration of justice. 
canclorlcooperation: Respondent displayed spontaneous candor and cooperation wiih the victims of 
Respondents misconduct or to the State Bar during disciplinary investigations and pnooeedings. 
Remorse: Respondent promptly took objective steps demonstrating spontaneous remorse and recognition 
of the wrongdoing. which steps were designed to timely atone for any consequences of Respondenfs 
misconduct. 

without the threat or force of Restitution: Respondent paid 3 on in restitution to 
disciplinary, civil or criminal proceedings. 
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(5) U 
(7) Cl 

(8) Cl 

(9) U 

(10) Cl 

(11) Cl 

(12) C1 

(13) [Z 

Delay: These disciplinry proceedings were exaesslvely délayed. The detay is not attributable to Respondent and the delay prejudiced Respondent. 

Good Faith: Respondent acted with a good faith belief that was honestly held and objectively reasonable. 

Emoflonalmhyslcal Difficulties: At the time of the stipulated act or acts of professional misconduct, 
Respondent suffered extreme emotional difficulties or physical or mental disabilities which expert testimony would establish was directly responsible for the misconduct. The difficulties or disabilities were not the 
product of any illegal conduct by Respondent. such as illegal drug or substance abuse, and the difficulties 
or disabilities no longer pose a risk that Respondent will commit misconduct. 
severe Flnancial stress: At the time of the misconduct, Respondent suffered from severe financial stress 
which resulted from circumstances not reasonably foreseeable or which were beyond Respondent's control and which were directly responsible for the misconduct. 

Family Problems: At the time of the misconduct, Respondent suffered extneme difficulties in 
Respondent's personal life which were other than emotional or physical in nature. 

Good character: Respondents extraondinrlly good character is attested to by a wide range of references 
in the legal and general communities who are aware of the full extent of Respondent's misconduct 
Rehabllltaflbn: Considerable time has passed since the acts of professional misconduct occurred 
followed by convincing proof of subsequent rehabilitation. 

No mitigating circumstances are involved. 
Additional mitigating circumstances: 

D. Recommended Discipline: 
(1) Cl 

(2) CI 

(3) U 

Actual sfispenslon: 

Respondent is suspended from the practice of law for , the execution of that suspension is stayed, and Respondent is placed on probation for with the following conditions. - 

o Respondent must be suspended from the practice of law for the first of the period of 
Respondents probation. 

Actual Suspenslon “And Untll” Rehabilitation: 
Respondent is suspended from the practice of law for . the execution of that suspension is stayed. and Respondent is placed on probation for with the following conditions. 

o Respondent‘ must be suspended from the practice of law for a minimum of the first of 
Respondents probation and until Respondent provides proof to the State Bar Court of Respondents 
rehabilitation, fitness to practice. and present learning and ability in the general law. (Rules Proc. of 
State Bar. tit. IV. Stds. for Atty. Sanctions for Prof. Misconduct. std. 1.2(c)(1).) 

Actual Suspension “And Until" Restitution (single Payee) and'RehablIItatIon: 
Respondent is suspended from the practice of law for , the execution of that suspension is stayed, 
and Respondent is placed on probation for with the following conditions. 

(Effective July 1, 2018) 
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a Respondent must be suspended fmm the practice of law for a minimum of the first of Respondent's probation, and Respondent will remain suspended until both of the following 
requirements are satisfied: 

a. Respondent makes restitution to in the amount of $ plus 10 percent interest per year from (or reimburses the Client Security Fund to the extent of any payment from the Fund to such payee, in accordance with Business and Professions Code section 6140.5) and furnishes satisfactory proof to the State Bar's Oflioe of Pmbation In Los Angeles; and 
b. Respondent provides proof to the state Bar Court of Respondent's rehabilitation, fitness to 

practice, and present learning and ability in the general law. (Rules Pmc. of State Bar, 
tit IV. Stds. for Atty. Sanctions for Prof. Misconduct, std. 1.2(c)(1).) 

(4) I] Actual suspension “And Untll” Restitution (Multiple Payees) and Rehabilitation: 
Respondent is suspended from the practice of law for , the execution of that suspension Is stayed, and Respondent is placed on probation for with the following conditions. 

o Respondent must be suspended from the practice of law for a minimum of the first of Respondent's probation. and Respondent will remain suspended until both of the following 
requirements are satisfied: 

a. Respondent must make restitution, including the principal amount plus 10 percent interest per year (and fumlsh satisfactory proof of such restitution to the Office of Probation). to each of the 
following payees (or neimburse the Client Security Fund to the extent of any payment from the Fund to such payee in accordance with Business and Professions Code section 6140.5): 

Interest Accrues From 

b. Respondent provides proof to the State Bar Court of Respondent's rehabilitation. fitness to 
practice, and present learning and ability in the general law. (Rules Proc. of State Bar, tit. IV. Stds. for Atty. Sanctions for Prof. Misconduct, std. 1.2(c)(1).) 

(5) >24 Actual Suspension “And Until" Restitution (single Payee) with conditional std. 1 .2(c)(1) Requirement: 

Respondent is suspended from the practice of law for one year. the execution of that suspension is 
stayed, and Respondent is placed on probation for two years with the following conditions. 
a Respondent must be suspended from the practice of law for a minimum for the fltst 90 days of Respondenfs probation, and Respondent will remain suspended until the following requirements are safisfled: . 

a. Respondent makes restitution to Yuxia Chen in the amount of S 2,000 plus‘10 percent Interest per year from April 16, 2016 (or reimburses the Client Security Fund to the extent of any 
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payment from the Fund to such payee, in accordance with Business and Professions Code section 6140.5) nd furnishes satisfactory proof to the State Bar's Office of Probation In Los Angeles; and. 

b. If Respondent remains suspended for two years or longer, Respondent must provide proof to the State Bar Court of Respondent's rehabilitation, fitness to practice, and present learning and ability in the general Iaw. (Rules Proc. of State Bar. tit. IV. Stds. for Atty. Sanctions for Prof. Misconduct, std. 1.2(c)(1).) 

(6) C] Actual suspension “And Until” Restitution (Multiple Payees) with conditional Std. 1.2(c)(1) Requirement: 

Respondént is suspended from the practice of law for . the execution of that suspension is stayed, and Respondent is placed on probation for with the following conditions. 
-- Respondent must be suspended from the practice of law for a minimum for the first of Respondent's probation, and Respondent will remain suspended until the following requirements are satisfied: 

a. Respondent must make restitution, Including the principal amount plus 10 percent interest per year (and fumish satisfactory proof of such restitution to the Offioe of Probation). to each of the following payees (or reimburse the Client Security Fund to the extent of any payment from the Fund to such payee in accordance with Business and Professions Code section 6140.5): 

Amount nterestAccrues 

b. If Respondent remains suspended for two years or longer, Respondent must provide proof to the State Bar Court of Respondent's rehabilitation. fitness to practice, and present Ieaming and ability 
in the general law. (Rules Proc. of State Bar, tit. IV, Stds. for Atty. Snctions for Prof. Misconduct. std. 1.2(c)(1).) 

(7) El Actual Suspension with credit for Interim Suspension: 
Respondent is suspended from the practice of law for , the execution of that suspension is stayed . and Respondent is placed on probation for with the following conditions. 

- Respondent is suspended from the practice of law for the flrst of probation (with credit given 
for the period of interim suspension which commenced on ). 

E. Additional Conditions of Probation: 

(1) E Review Rules of Professional Conduct: Wrlhin 30 days after the effective date of the Supreme Coutt order imposing discipline in this matter. Respondent must ( 1) read the California Rules of Professional Conduct (Rules of Professional Conduct) and Business and Pnofessions Code sections 6067, 6088, and 

(Effective July 1. 201 B)
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(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

(6) X4 

6103 through 6126, and (2) provide a declaration. under penalty of perjury, atlaesfing to Respondent's 
compliance with this requirement, to the State Bar's Office of Probation in Los Angeles (Office of Probation) 
with Respondents first quarterly report. 

comply with state Bar Act, Rules of Professional Conduct, and Probation conditions: Respondent 
must comply with the provisions of the State Bar Act, the Rules of Professional Conduct, and all commons 
of Respondent's probation. 

Maintain Valid Olflclal Membership Address and other Required Contact Information: Wthin 30 
days after the effective date of the Supreme Court order imposing discipline in this matter, Respondent 
must make certain that the State Bar Attorney Regulation and consumer Resources Offioe (ARCR) has 
Respondent's current offioe address, email address, and telephone number. If Respondent does not 
maintain an office, Respondent must provide the mailing address, email address. and telephone number to be used for State Bar purposes. Respondent must report. in writing. any change in the above infonnalion 
to ARCR, within ten (10) days after such change. In the manner required by that offioe. 
Meet and cooperate with Office of Probation: Within 15 days after the effective date of the Supreme 
Court onder imposing discipline in this matter. Respondent must schedule a meeting with Respondent's 
assigned probation se specialist to discuss the terms and conditions of Respondent's discipline and. 
within 30 days after the effective date of the court's order. must participate In such meeting. Unless 
othemise instructed by the Office of Probation. Respondent may meet with the probation case specialist in 
person or by telephone. During the probation period, Respondent must promptly‘ mgatmfla; representatives 
of the Office of Probation as requested by it and, subject to the assertion of applicable privileges, must fully. 
promptly. aph truthfully answer any inquiries by it and pmvide to It any other information requested by it. 
state Bar court Retains Jurisdictionmppear Botoro and cooperate with state Bar court: During 
Respondent's probation period. the State Bar Court retains jurisdiction over Respondent to address issues 
conoeming compliance with probafion conditions. During this period. Respondent must appear before the 
State Bar Court as required by the court or by the Offioe of Probation after written notice mailed to 
Respondent's official membership address. as provided above. Subject to the assertion of applicable 
privileges, Respondent must fully, promptly, and truthfully answer any inquiries by the court and must 
provide any other information the court requests. 

Quarterly and Final Reports: 

a. Deadlines for Reports. Respondent must submit written quarterly reports to the Office of Probation no 
later than each January 10 (covering October 1 through December 31 of the prior year), April 10 
(covering January 1 through March 31), July 10 (covering April 1 through June 30), and October 10 
(covering July 1 through September 30) wlthln the period of probation. If the first report would cover 
less than 30 days. that report must be submitted on the next quarter date and cover the extended 
deadline. In addition to all quarterly reports, Respondent must submit a final report no earlier than ten 
(10) days before the last day of the probation period and no later than the last day of the probation 
period.‘ . 

b. Contents of Reports. Respondent must answer. under penalty of petjury, all inquiries contained in the 
quarterly report form provided by the Office of Probation. including stating whether Respondent has 
complied with the State Bar Act and the Rules of Professional Conduct during the applicable quarter or 
period. » All reports must be: (1) submitted on the form pmvided by the Offioe of Probation; (2) signed and dated after the completion of the period for which the report is being submitted (except for the final 
report); (3) filled out completely and signed under penalty of perjury: and (4) submitted to the Office of 
Probation on or before each report’: due date. 

. c. submission of Reports. All reports must be submitted by: (1) fax or email to the Office of Probation; 
(2) personal delivery to the Offioe of Probation; (3) certified mall, retum receipt requested. to the Office 
of Probation (postmarked on or before the due date); or (4) alher tracked-service provider. such as 

(Effective July 1. 2018) 
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(7) 

(3) Cl 

(9) U 

(10) Cl 

(11) Cl 

Federal Express or United Parcel Service. etc. (physically delivered to such provider on or before the due date). 

d. Proof of compliance. Respondent is directed to maintain proof of Respondent's compliance wilh the above requirements for each such report for a minimum of one year after either the period of probation 
or the period of Respondents actual suspension has ended 

, whichever is longer. Respondent is 
required to present such proof upon request by the State Bar. the Offioe of Probation. or the State Bar 
Court. 

state Bar Ethics School: Wthin one year after the effective date of the Supreme Court order Imposing 
discipline in this matter. Respondent must submit to the Office of Probation satisfactory evidence of 
completion of the State Bar Ethics School and passage of the test given at the end of that session. This 
requirement is separate from any Minimum Continuing Legal Education (MCLE) requirement, and Respondent will not receive MOLE credit for attending this session. If Respondent provides satisfactory evidence of completion of the Ethics School after the date of this stipulation but before the effective date of the Supreme Court's order in this matter, Respondent will nonetheless receive credit for such evidence 
toward Respondents duty to comply with this condition. 

State Bar Ethics School Not Recommended: It is not recommended that Respondent be ordered to 
attend the State Bar Ethics School because .

‘ 

state Bar client Trust Accounting school: Vwthin one year after the effective date of the Supreme Court 
order imposing discipline In this matter, Respondent must submit to the Office of Probation satisfactory evidence of completion .of the State Bar Client Trust Accounting School and passage of the test given at 
the end of that session. This tequirement is separate from any Minimum Continuing Legal Education 
(MCLE) requirement, and Respondent will not receive MCLE credit for attending this session. If Respondent provides satisfactory evidence of oompietion of the Client Trust Accounting School after the date of this stipulation but before the effective date of the Supreme Court's order in this matter, Respondent 
will nonetheless receive credit for such evidence tawatd Respondent's duty to comply with this condition. 
Minimum conflnulng Legal Education (MOLE) courses - California Legal Ethics [Alternative to 
State Bar Ethics school for Out-of-state Residents]: Because Respondent resides outside of 
Catifomia. within after the effective date of the Supreme Court order imposing discipline In this 
matter, Respondent must either submit to the Offloe of Probation satisfactory evidence of completion of the 
State Bar Ethics School and passage of the test given at the end of that session or, in the alternative, 
complete hours of California Minimum Continuing Legal Education-approved participatory activity in 
California legal ethics and provide proof of such completion to the Office of Probation. This requirement is 
separate from any MCLE requirement, and Respondent will not receive MCLE credit for this activity. If 
Respondent‘ provides satisfactory evidence of completion of the Ethics School or the hours of legal 
education described above, completed after the date of this stipulation but before the effective date of the Supreme Court's order in this matter. Respondent will nonetheless receive credit for such evidence toward Respondent's duty to comply with this condition. 

crlmlnal Probation: Respondent must comply with all probation conditions Imposed in the undenying 
criminal matter and must report such compliance under penaity of perjury in all quarterly and final reports 
submitted to the Office of Probation covering any portion of the period of the criminal probation. In each 
quarterly and final report, if Respondent has an assigned ctiminal probation offioer. Respondent must 
provide the name and cutrent contact information for that criminal probation officer. If the criminal 
probation was successfully completed during the period covered by a quarterly or final report, that fact must be reported by Respondent in such report and satisfactory evidence of such fact must be provided 
with it. If. at any time before or during the period of probation, Respondent's criminal probation is revoked, 
Respondent is sanctloned by the criminal court. or Respondents status is otherwise changed due to any 
alleged violation of the criminal pmbation conditions by Respondent. Respondent must submit the criminal 
court records regarding any such action with Respondenfs next quarterty or final report. 

(Elfective July 1. 2018) 
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(12) El Minimum continuing Legal Education (MCLE): Within after the effective date of the supreme 
court order imposin discipline in this matter. Respondent must complete hour(s) of callfomla Minimum Continuing Legal Edution-approved participatory activity in SELECT ONE and must 
provide proof of such completion to the Offioe of Probation. This requirement is separate from any MCLE 
requirement. and Respondent will not receive MCLE credit for this aclivity. If Respondent provides 
satisfactory evidence of completion of the hours of legal education desctibed above. completed after the‘ 
date of this stipulation but before the elfecflve date of the Supreme Court's order in this matter, 
Respondent will nonetheless receive credit for such evidence toward Respondenfs duty to comply with 
this condition. 

(13) D Other: Respondent must also _comply with the foilowing additional conditions of probation: . 

(14) E Proof of compliance with Rule 9.20 Obllgatlons: Respondent is directed to maintain, for a minimum of one year after commencement of probation. proof of compliance with the Supreme Court's under that Respondent comply with the requirements of California Rules of Court. rule 9.20. subdivisions (a) and (c). Such proof must include: the names and addresses of all individuals and entities to whom Respondent 
sent notification pursuant to rule 9.20; a copy of each notification letter sent to each recipient; the original 
receipt or postal authority tracking document for each notification sent; the originals of all returned teoeipts and notifications of non-delivery; and a copy of the completed compliance affidavit filed by Respondent 
with the State Bar Court Respondent is required to present such proof upon request by the State Bar. the Offioe of Probation. or the State Bar Court. 

(15) I] The following conditions are attached hereto and Incorporated: 

CI Financial Conditions I_—_] Medical Conditions 

[I Substance Abuse Conditions 

The period of probation will commence on the effective date of the Supreme Court order imposing discipline In this 
matter. At the expiration of the probation period, if Respondent has complied with all conditions of probation, the 
period of stayed suspension will be satisfied and that suspension will be terminated. 

F. Other Requirements Negotiated by the Parties (Not Probation CofiditIons): 
(1) >14 Multlstate Professional Responsibility Examlnatlon Wlthln One Year or During Period of Actual 

Suspension: Respondent must take and pass the Multlstate Professional Responsibility Examination 
adminlsI:er_ed by the National Conference of Bar Examiners within one year after the effective date of the Supreme Court order imposing discipline in this matter or during the period of Respondent's actual 
suspension. whichever is longer, and to provide satlsfacfory proof of such passage to the State Bar’s 
Offioe of Probation within the same period. Failure to do so may result in suspension. (Cal. Rules of 
Court, rule 9.10(b).) If Respondent provides satisfactory evidence of the taking and passage of the above 
examination afier the date of this stipulation but before the effective date of the Supreme Court's order in 
this matter, Respondent will nonetheless receive credit for such evidence toward Respondent's duty to comply with this requirement. ’ 

(2) El Multistate Professional Responsibility Examination Requlrement Not Recommended: It is not 
recommended that Respondent be ordered to take and pass the Multisiate Professional Responsibility 
Examination because . 

(3) >24 California Rules of court. Rule 9.20: Respondent must comply with the requirements of Califomla 
Rules of Court. rule 9.20, and perform the acts specified in subdivisions (a) and (c) of that rule within 30 and 40 days, respectively. after the efiective date of the Supreme Court order imposlng discipline In this 
matter. Failure to do so may result in disbarment or suspension. 

(Effective July 1. 2018) 
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(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

For putposes of compliance with rule 9.20(a), the operative date for identification of ‘clients being 
represented In pending matters‘ and others to be notified is the filing date of the Supreme Court order. not any later ‘effective’ date of the order. (Atheam V. State Bar (1982) 32 Ca|.3d 38. 45.) Further, Respondent is required to file a rule 9.20(c) affidavit even if Respondent has no dients to notify an the 

- date the Supreme Court filed its order in this proceeding. (Powers v. State Bar(1988) 44 Cal.3d 337. 
341.) In addition to being punished as a crime or contempt. an attomey's failure to pomply with rule 9.20 
is, inter alia. cause for disbarment, suspension, revocation of any pending disciplinary probation. and 

. denial of an application for reinstatement after disbarment. (Cal. Rules of Court, rule 9.20(d).) 

callfomla Rules of court, Rule 9.20 — Conditional Requlrament: If Respondent remains suspended 
for 90 days or longer, Respondent must comply with the requirements of California Rules of court, 
rule 9.20, and perfonn the acts specified in subdivisions (a) and (c) of that rule within 120 and 130 days. 
respectively. after the effective date of the Supreme Court order imposing discipline in Ihis matter. Failure 
to do so may result In disbannent or suspension. 
For purposes of compliance with tule 9.20(a), the operative date for Identification of ‘clients being 
represented in pending matters‘ and others to be notified is the filing date of the Supreme Court order. not any later ‘effective’ date of the order. (Atheam v. State Bar(1982) 32 Cal.3d 38. 45.) Further. Respondent is required to fiie a rule 9.20(c) affidavit even if Respondent has no clients to notify on the date the Supreme Court filed its order in this proceeding. (Powers v. State Bar(1988) 44 Cal.3d 337, 
341.) In addition to being punished as a crime or contempt. an attomey’s failure to comply with rule 9.20 
is, inter alia. cause for disbarment, suspension, revocation of any pending disciplinary probation, and 
denial of an application for reinstatement after disbarment. (Cal. Rules of Court. rule 9.20(d).) 

California Rules of Court, Rule 9.20, Requirement Not Recommended: It is not recorrimended that Respondent be ordered to comply with the requirements of Califomla Ruies of Court. rule 9.20. because 

Othar Requlrements: It is further recommended that Respondent be ordered to comply with the following 
additional requirements: .

' 

(Effective July 1. 2018) 
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ATTACHMENT TO 
STIPQLATION RE FACTS, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DISPOSITION 

IN THE MATTER OF: KEVIN GANG LONG 
CASE NUMBER: 17-O-05036 

FACTS AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW. 
Respondent admits that the following facts are true and that he is culpable of violations of the specified 
statutes and/or Rules of Professional Conduct. 

Qgg No. 17-O-05036 (Complainant: Yuxia Chen) 
FACTS: 

1. On April.14, 2016, Yuxia Chen hired respondent to file an application for citizenship for a fee 
of $2,000. At the time of hire, Ms. Chen had been waiting for a green card (permanent resident status) 
as an asylee‘for more than five years. .

. 

2. In part, 8 U.S.C. 1427 states that “No person, except as otherwise provided in this subchapter, 
shall be naturalized unless such applicant, (1) immediately preceding the date of filing his application 
for naturalization has resided continuously, aficr being lawfiflly admitted for pennancnt residence, 
within the United States for at least five years. ...” 

3. On May 4, 2016, respondent filed a Form N-400 application for naturalization,’ with the 
United States Citizenship and Immigration Services (“USCIS”) on behalf of Ms. Chen despite his 
knowledge that Ms. Chen had not obtained her green card and would be ineligible for citizenship. 

4. On June 6, 2017, when Ms. Chen appeared at an immigration officc for her naturalization 
interview, an immigration ofiiccr told her that she was not eligible for citizenship because she did not 
have a green card. As a result, Ms. Chen withdrew her citizenship application. Ms. Chen subsequently 
asked respondent to refund the $2,000 that she paid him, but respondent claimed that he had fully eamed 
the fee. 

5. On July 31, 2018, Ms. Chen filed a complaint against rwpondcnt with the State Bar. 

6. On October 26, 2017, a State Bar Investigator mailed respondent an inquiry lottcr asking for 
respondent to respond to Ms. Chexfs allegations of misconduct, including specifically that he filed a 
Form N-400 request for naturalization when he knew that Ms. Chen did not have her green card, which 
is a mandatory requirement. 

7. On November 6, 2017, respondent responded to the inquiry letter and admitted that he 
prepared and submitted Ms. Chcn’s Form N-400 application for naturalization even thou she had not 
obtained a green card. Respondent also stated, “Ms. Chen enjoyed the benefit, opportunity and service 
of me application for_ [naturalization]. . Whether she qualified for [naturalization] . . . is subject to the 
adjudication of the US government. The government most oerlninly would not return the filing fees 
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paid. It is not reasongblc for Ms. Chen to demand the return of her money after she had already joyed 
the benefit, oppormnfity, and service of the application for citizenship.” 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW: 
8. By not advising Ms. Chen that she was not eligible for naturalization because she did not 

have a green card, and by filing a Form N-400 application for natmalization anyway on her behalf when 
he knew or should have known that the application would not be granted, respondent intentionally, 
recklessly, or repeatedly failed to perfonn legal scrviocs with competence in willfill violation of Rules of 
Professional Conduct, xule 3-110(A). 

9. By filing a Form N-400 application for naturalization on Ms. Chen's behalf with USCIS 
when respondent knew thm Ms. Chen had not obtained her green card, which is a mandatory 
requirement for eligibility, respondent failed to counsel or maintain such action, proceedings, or 
defenses only as appear to respondent as legal or just, in willful violation of Business and Professions 
Code, section 6068(0). 

AGGRAVATING (EIRCUMSTANCES. 
Prior Record} of Discipline (Std. 1.5(a)): Respondent has two prior records of discipline. 

In State Bar Court Case No. 16-H-11300, eficctive August 19, 2016, discipline was imposed 
against respondent cdnsisting of a public reproval with conditions for one year. In that matter, 
respondent failed to comply with conditions attached to his private reproval including untimely 
scheduling a mandatéry probation meeting and untimely reporting passage of the Multistate Professional 
Responsibility Examination, in willful violation of Rules of Professional Conduct, rule 1-110. The 
misconduct occurred in 2016. In aggravation, respondent had a prior record of discipline. In mitigation, 
respondent entered a prefiling stipulation. Exhibit 1 is a certified copy of the prior discipline. 

In State Bar Court Case No. 14-O-01271, effective February 6, 2015, discipline was imposed 
against respondent consisting of a private rcproval with conditions for one year. In that matter, 
respondent constructively terminated representation of two clients, without notice, by failing to appear 
on behalf of his clients at their immigration hearings without taking any steps to prepare the clients for 
the hearings or arrange for another attorney to appear in his place, in willful violation of Rules of 
Professional Conduct, rule 3-700(A)(2). The misconduct occurred in 2012. In aggravation, respondent’s 
misconduct caused hiarm to his former clients. In mitigation, respondent had no prior record of 
discipline and entered into a prefiling stipulation. Exhibit 2 is a certified copy of the prior discipline. 

Indifierence (Std. l.5(k)): In his response to a State Bar Investigamr’s inquiry letter, respondent 
stated that he should ‘not have to refund Ms. Chcn’s attorney fees for filing the N-400 application 
because she “enjoyed the benefit, opportunity and service of the application for citizenship.” When he 
made this statement, "respondent knew or should have known that the application was frivolous and had 
no chance of being granted, and thus, this position was specious and unsupportnd by the facts. Making 
such a statement in an attempt to avoid a finding of culpability reveals a lack of appreciation for both his 
misconduct and his obligations as an attorney. (In the Matter of Bach (Review Dept. 1991) 1 Cal. State 
Bar Ct. Rptr. 63 1, 647.)



MITIGATING CIRCUMSTANCES. 
None. 

AUTHORITIES sdrronrmc DISCIPLINE. 
The Standards for Attorney Sanctions for Professional Misconduct “set forth a means for 

determining the appropriate disciplinary sanction in a particular case and to ensuxe consistency across 
cases dealing with similar misconduct and surrounding circumstances.” (Rules Proc. of State Bar, tit. 
IV, Suds. for Atty. Sanctions for Prof. Misconduct, std. 1.1. All fixrther references to standards are to this 
source.) The standards help fulfill the primary purposes of disciplinc, which include: protection of the 
public, the courts and the legal profession; maintenance of the highest professional standards; and 
preservation of public confidence in the legal profession. (Sec std. 1.1; In re Morse (1995) 11 Cal.4th 
184, 205.) ' 

Although not binding, the standards are entitlcd to “great weight” and should be followed 
“whenever possible" in determining level of discipline. (In re Silverton (2005) 36 Cal.4th 81, 92, 
quoting In re Brown (1995) 12 Cal.4th 205, 220 and In re Young (1989) 49 Cal.3d 257, 267, fiz. ll.) 
Adherence to the standards in the great majoritybf cases serves the valuable purpose of eliminating 
disparity and assuring consistency, that is, the imposition of similar attorney discipline for instances of 
similar attorney misconduct (In re Naney (1990) 51 Cal.3d 186, 190.) If a recommendation is at the 
high end or low end 9f :1 standard, an explanation must be given as to how the recommendation was 
reached. (Std. 1.1.) ;“Any disciplinary recommendation that deviates from the Standards must include 
clear reasons for the departure.” (Std. 1.1; Blair v. State Bar (1989) 49 Cal.3d 762, 776, m. 5.) 

In determining whether to impose a sanction greater or less than that specified in a given
_ 

standard, in addition to the factors set forth in the specific standard, consideration is to be given to the 
primaxy purposes of discipline; the balancing of all aggravating and mitigating circumstances; the type 
of misconduct at issue; whether the client, public, legal system or profession was harmed; and the 
member's willingness and ability to conform to ethical responsibilities in the future. (Stds. 1.7(b) and 
(0)-) 

Because respondent has two prior records of discipline, standard 1.8(b) must be addressed. 
Standard 1.8(b) provides that: 

Ifa mgmber has two or more prior records of discipline, disbarmcnt is appropriate 
in the {following circumstances, unless the most compelling mitigating 
circumstances clearly predominate or the misconduct underlying the prior 
disciplinc occurred dming the same time period as the current misconduct: 

1. Afiual suspension was ordered in any one of the prior disciplinary matters; 

2. The prior disciplinary matters coupled with the current record demonstrate a 
pattern of misconduct; or 

3. The prior disciplinary matters oouplad with the current record demonstrate the 
mcmber’s unwillingness or inability to confonn to ethical responsibilities.



The plain language of Standard l.8(b) intuitively identifies an issue where the current 
misconduct is synchronous with misconduct from a prior discipline, formally discussed in In the Matter 
of Slclar (Review Dept. 1993) 2 Cal. State Bar Ct. Rptr. 602 In Sldar, the Court declared: 

“Since part of the rationale for considering prior discipline as having an 
aggravating impact is that it is indicative of a. recidivist atton-ney’s inability 
to conform his or her conduct to ethical norms (scc In the Matter of Bach 
(Review Dept. 1991) 1 Cal. State Bar Ct. Rptr. 631, 64), it is therefore 
appropriate to consider the fact that the misconduct involved here was 
contemporaneous with the misconduct in the prior case. We therefore 
consider the totality of the findings in the two cases to determine what the 
discipline would have been had all the charged misconduct in this period 
been brought as one case." 

The misconduct in the present <_iisciplinary mattct occurred in May 2016. In respondent's prior 
disciplinary action, which involved probation violations, the misconduct also took place in April of 
2016. Accordingly, the reasoning and analysis in Sklar is applicable because thc actions amounting to 
misconduct in this case and the prior case are contemporaneous to one another. Respondent did not 
have the benefit of lehming from his most recent prior discipline, and therefore, the aggravating effect of 
the last prior discipline should be diminished. Accordingly, it is appropriate to consider the totality of 
the misconduct in the prior discipline and cuxrent matter combined to determine the appropziate level of 
discipline as if all the charged misconduct been considered collectively. 

Nonetheless, Standard 1.8(a) applies, and the current sanction should be greater than the 
previously imposed sanction because respondent's first record of discipline is not remote in time and 
was sufficiently serious in nature. 

In this matter, respondent is alleged to have committed multiple acts of misconduct. Standard 
1.7(a) requires that where a respondent “commits two or more acts of misconduct and the Standards 
specify difierent sanctions for each act, the most severe sanction must be imposed.” Standard 2.7(c) 
states that the presumed sanction for performance, communication, or withdrawal violations, which are 
limited in scope and time, is suspension or reproval. The degree of the sanction depends on the extent of 
the misconduct and the degree of harm to the client or clients. Standard 2.9(b) also presumes that 
suspension or rcproval is the appropriate sanction when a member counsels or maintains a frivolous 
claim or action for an improper purpose. Accordingly, either Standard is applicable here. 

Respondentfi first discipline of a private rcproval involved abandoning a client in an 
immigration matter. Respondenfs most recent prior discipline of a public reproval involved minor 
violafions of reproval conditions. Respondent’s current matter again involves misconduct in handling an 
immigration matter and the misconduct occurred contemporaneously to when respondent should have 
been working towards rehabilitating himself. The successive misconduct suggests that respondent failed 
to learn fiom his first discipline, and thus, the level of discipline should be greater. Also, current 
misconduct reveals evidence of aggravation for demonstrating indifi‘emncc. Accordingly, a discipline 
consisting of a one-year stayed suspension and two-year probation with conditions, including a 90-day 
actual suspension and remaining suspended tmtil restitution is paid, is appropriate to protect the public, 
the courts, and the legal profession. 

Case law supports this level of discipline. In Bach vs. State Bar (1991) 52 Cal.3d 1201, an 
attorney was hired to handle an uncontested dissolution of mauiage case for his client. Two and one-
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half years into the representation, the attorney withdrew without consent of the client or the court, failed 
to complete the dissolution, and failed to return any unearned fees. The attorney also failed to 
participate in the State Bar Investigation. respond to two inquiry letters sent by the State Bar asking for 
a response to the client’s allegations. In mitigation, respondent had no prior discipline over 26 years of 
law practice prior to the misconduct. In aggravation, the Court found that thc attomey’s feckless claims 
of mitigation, that were not at all supported by the facts, showed a highly unfavorable attitude towards 
the proceedings, and was further evidence of a need for actual suspension. Discipline was imposed as to 
the attorney consistin_g of a one year stayed suspension, one year probation with conditions including a 
30-day actual suspension and payment of restitution. 

Rsespondent’s_ misconduct is similar to Bach’s in that he failed to perform with competence by 
filing a frivolous application for citizenship when Ms. Chen had no possibility of receiving one, but 
differs in that he less acts misconduct and the period during which the misconduct took place 
is only a few weeks. Nohetheless, respondent’s misconduct is aggravated by a showing of indifference 
and two pxior records of discipline, and even giving less aggravation weight to the second discipline due 
to the contemporaneous timing of the misconducts, respondent was in the midst of the rehabilitative 
process from his first discipline so his misconduct in this matter displays rccidivist tendencies that 
significantly aggravate the level of discipline. Given these factors, and that respondent has no 
mitigation, respondent should receive greater discipline than Bach. Accordingly, a discipline including 
a 90-day actual suspension and remaining suspended until restitution is paid, is warranted to protect the 
public, the courts, and the legal profession. 

COSTS OF DISCIPLINARY PROCEEDINGS. 
Respondent acknowledges that the Office of Chief Trial Counsel has informed respondent that as of 
September 25, 2018, the discipline costs in this matter are $3,215. Respondent further acknowledges 
that should this stipulguzion be rejected or should relief from the stipulation be granted, the costs in this 
matter may increase; due to the cost of further proceedings. 

EXCLUSION FR¢M MINIMUM CONTINUING LEGAL EDUCATION (“MCLE”) CREDIT. 
Respondent may 1151; receive MCLE credit for completion of the State Bar Ethics School. (Rules Proc. 
of State Bar, rule 3201.)
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In the Matter of: Case Number(s): 
KEVIN GANG LONG 17-O-05036 

ACTUAL SUSPENSION ORDER 
Finding the stipulation to be fair to the parties and that it adequately protects the public, IT IS ORDERED that the 
requested dismissal of counts/charges, if any, is GRANTED without prejudice, and: 

[:1 The stipulated facts and disposition are APPROVED and the DISCIPLINE RECOMMENDED to the 
Supreme Court. 

K4 The stipulated facts and disposition are APPROVED AS MODIFIED as set forth below, and the 
DISCIPLINE IS RECOMMENDED to the Supreme Court. 

IX All Hearing dates are vacated. 

On page 2 of the Stipulation, at paragraph B.(1)(b), “January 16, 2015” is deleted, and in its place is inserted 
“February 6, 2015”. 

On page 2 of the Stipulation, at paragraph B.(1)(e), “July 29, 2016” is deleted, and in its place is inserted 
“August 19, 2016”. 

On page 12 of the Stipulation, first paragraph under “Prior Records of Discipline,” line 7, “Exhibit 1” is 
deleted, and in its place is inserted “Exhibit 2”. 

On page 12 of the Stipulation, second paragraph under “Prior Records of Discipline,” line 8, “Exhibit 2” is 
deleted, and in its place is inserted “Exhibit 1”. 

The parties are bound by the stipulation as approved unless: 1) a motion to withdraw or modify the stipulation, filed 
within 15 days after service of this order, is granted; or 2) this court modifies or further modifies the approved 
stipulation. (See Rules Proc. of State Bar, rule 5.58(E) & (F).) The effective date of this disposition is the effective 
date of the Supreme Court order herein, normally 30 days after the filed date of the Supreme Court order. 
(See Cal. Rules of Court, rule 9.18(a).) 

Q (Av \1, .)>\'g/ 
Date ' LUCV AFflMEND7\RlZ 

Judge of the State Bar Court 

(Effective July 1, 2018) 
Actual Suspension Order 

Page H
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STIPULATION RE FACTS. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND 
In the Matter of: 
KEVIN GANG LONG 

Bar # 195523 

(Respondent) 
A Member of the State Bar of Califomia 

DISPOSITION AND ORDER APPROVING 

PRIVATE REPROVAL 

E] PREVIOUS STIPULATION REJECTED 

Note: All information required by this form and any additional lnfonnatiqn which cannot be provided In the 
space provided, must be set forth in an attachment to this stipulation under specific headings, e.g., “F-acts," 
“Dismissals,” “Conclusions of Law," "Supporting Authority,” etc. » 

A. Parties’ Acknowledgments: 

(1) 

(2) 

Respondent is a member of the State Bar of California, admitted June 4, 1998. 
The parties agree to be bound by the factual stipulations contained herein even if conclusions of law or 
disposition are rejected or changed by the Supreme Court 

(3) All investigations or proceedings listed by case number in the caption of this stipulation are entirely resolved by 
this stipulation and are deemed consolidated. Dismissed charge(s)Icount(s) are listed under “Dismissals." The 
stipulation consists of 10 pages, not including the order. 

(4) 
under “Facts.” 
A statement of acts or omissions acknowledged by Respondent as cause or causes for discipline is included 

(Effective January 1, 2014) 
Repmval
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(5) Conclusions of law, drawn from and specifically referring to the facts are also included under ‘Conclusions of 

(6) The parties must include supporting authority for the recommended level of discipline under the heading 4 

“Supporting Authority.‘ 

(7) No more than 30 days prior to the filing of this stipulation, Respondent has been advised in writing of any 
pending investigationlprooeeding not resolved by this stipulation. except for criminal investigations. 

(8) Payment of Disciplinary Co§ts—Respondent acknowledges the provisions of Bus. & Prof. Code §§6086.10 & 
6140.7. (Check one option only): 

El Costs are added to membership fee for calendar year following effective date of discipline (public 
reproval). 

>14 Case ineligible for costs (private reproval). 
El Costs are to be paid in equal amounts prior to February 1 for the following membership years: 

(Hardship, special circumstances or other good cause per rule 5.132. Rules of Procedure.) If . 

Respondent fails to pay any installment as described above, or as may be modified by the State Bar 
Court, the remaining balance is due and payable immediately. 

[I Costs are waived in part as set forth in a separate attachmententitled ‘Partial Waiver of costs’. 
[I Costs are entirely waived. 

(9) The parties understand that: 

(a) A private reproval imposed on a respondent as a result of a stipulation approved by the Court ptior to 
initiation of ‘a State Bar Court proceeding is part of the respondent's official State Bar membership 
records, but is not disclosed in response to public inquiries and is not reported on the State Bar's web 
page. The record of the proceeding in which such a private reproval was imposed is not available to 
the public except as part of the record of any subsequent proceeding in which it is introduced as 
evidence of a prior record of discipline under the Rules of Procedure of the State Bar. 

(b) [I A private reproval imposed on a respondent after initiation of a State Bar Court proceeding is part of 
the respondent's official State Bar membership records, is disciosed in response to pubiic inquiries 
and is reported as a record of public discipline on the State Bar's web page. 

(c) E] A public reproval imposed on a respondent is publicly available as part of the respondent's officia! 
State Bar membership records, is disclosed in response to public inquiries and is reported as a record 
of public discipline on _the State Bar's web page. ' 

B. Aggravatin Circumstances [Standards for Attorney Sanctions for Professional 
Misconduct, standards 1.2(f) & 1.5]. Facts supporting aggravating circumstances are 
required. 

(1) E] Prior record of discipline
. 

(a) E] State Bar Count case # of prior case 
»(b) D Date prior discipline effective 

(c) Cl Ru|es of Professional Conduct! State Bar Act violations: 

(:1) El Degree of prior discipline 

(e) [I If Respondent has two or more incidents of prior discipline, use space provided below or a sebarate 
attachment entitled ‘Prior Discipline. 

-(ETecIive January 1.2014) 
. 
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[I Dishonesty: Respondents misconduct was intentional, surrounded by, or followed by bad faith, . (2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

(5) 

(7) 

(8) 

(9) 

El

E 

CICJEICJCJ 

dishonesty. concealment, overreaching or other violations of the State Bar Act or Rules of Professional 
Conduct. 

Trust Violation: Trust funds or property were involved and Respondent refused or was unable to account 
to the client or person who was the object of the misconduct for improper conduct toward said funds or 
P'°P°W- 

Hatm: Resfiondenfs misconduct harmed significantly a client, the public or the administration of justice. 
See stipulation Attachment at page 7. -

. 

Indifference: Respondent demonstrated indifference toward rectification of or atonement for the 
consequences of his or her misconduct 

Lack of cooperation: Respondent displayed é lack of candor and cooperation to victims of his/her 
misconduct or to the State Bar during disciplinary investigation or proceedings. 

MuItlpleIPattern of Misconduct: Respondent's current misconduct evidences multiple acts of wrongdoing 
or demonstrates a pattern of misconduct. 

Restitution: Respondent failed to make restitution. 
No aggravating circumstances are involved. 

Additional aggravating circumstances: 

C. Mitigating Circumstances [see standards 1.2(g) & 1.6]. Facts supporting mitigating 
circumstances are required. 

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

, 

(6) 

(7) 

(8) 

(Efieotive January 1, 2014) 

El 

DDEIDDDD 

No Prior Discipline: Respondent has no prior record of discipline over many years of practice coupled 
with present misconduct which is not deemed serious. 

No Hann: Respondent did not harm the client, the public, or the administration of justice. 
Candorlcooperation: Respondent displayed spontaneous candor and cooperation with the victims of 
hislher misconduct and to the State Bar during disciplinary investigation and proceedings. 

Remorse: Respondent promptly took objectivé steps spontaneously demonstrating remorse and
_ recognition of the wrongdoing, which steps were designed to timely atone for any consequences of haslher 

misconduct. 

Restitution: Respondent paid $ on 
disciplinary, civil or criminal proceedings. 

in restitution to without the threat or force of 

Delay: These disciplinary proceedings were excessively delayed. The delay is not attributable to .- 

Respondent and the delay prejudiced himlher. 

Good Faith: Respondent acted with a good faith belief that was honestly held and neasonable. 
Emotionallfliysical Difficulties: At the time of the stipulated act or acts of professional misconduct 
Respondent suffered extreme emotional difficulties or physical or mental disabilities which expect testimony 
would establish was directly responsible for the misconduct. The difficulties or disabilities were not the 

Rpproval
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product of any illegal conduct by the member, such as illegal drug or substance abuse, and the diffioulties 
or disabilities no longer pose a risk that Respondent will commit misconduct 

(9) El Severe Financial Stress: At the time of the misconduct. Respondent suffered from seyere financial stress 
which resulted from circumstances not reasonably foreseeable or which were beyond hnslher control and 
which were directly responsible for the misconduct 

(10) [J Family Problems: At the time of the misconduct. Respondent suffered extneme difficulties in hislher 
personal life.which were other than emotional or physical in nature. 

(11) El Good character: Respondent's exttaordinarily good character is attested to by a wide range of references 
in the legal and general communities who are aware of the full extent of hislher misconduct. 

(12) E] Rehabilitation: Considerable time has passed since the acts of professional misconduct occurred 
followed by subsequent rehabilitation. 

(13) [I No mitigating circumstances are involved. 
Additional mitigating circumstances: 

No Prior Record of Discipline‘ and Profiling stipulation. See Stipulation Attachment at pages 7-8. 

D. Discipline: 

( 1) Private reproval (check applicable conditions, If any, below) 

(a) Approved by the Court prior to initiation of the State Bar Court proceedings (no public disclosure). 

(b) D Approved by the Court after initiation of the State Bar Court proceedings (public disclosure). 
0.f 

(2) 1:! Public reproval (Check applicable conditions, if any, below) 

E. Conditions Attached to Reproval: 

(1) Respondent must comply with the conditions attached to the reproval for a period of one (1) year. 

(2) [Z During the condition period attached to the reproval, Respondent must comply with the provisions of the 
State Bar Act and Rules of Professional Conduct. 

(3) Q Wthin ten (10) days of any change, Respondent must report to the Membership Records Office of the 
State Bar and to the Office of Probation of the State Bar of California ("Office of Probation”), all changes of 
infonnation, including current offioe address and telephone numbet, or other address for State Bar 
purposes. as by section 6002.1 of the Business and Professions Code.

' 

(4) IX Within thirty (30) days from the effective date of discipline, Respondent must contact the Office of Probation 
and schedule a meeting with Respondent's assigned probation deputy to discuss these terms apd 
conditions of probation. Upon the direction of the Offioe of Probation. Respofldefll mus‘ meet With "19 
probation deputy either in—person or by telephone. Duting the period of M05350". Respmdeflt must 
promptly meet with the probation deputy as directed and upon request. 

(5) IX Respondent must submit written quarterly reports to the Offioe of Probation on each January _1o, April 10, 
July 10, and October 10 of the condition period attached to the reproval. Under penalty of perjury, 
Respondent must state whether Respondent has complied with the State Bar Act, the Rules of 
Professional Conduct, and all conditions of the reproval during the preceding calendar quarter. Respondent 

ffedi .lanuaty1,2014) (E W 
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must also state in each report whether there are any proceedings pending against him or her in the State 
Bar Court and if so, the case number and cument status of that proceeding. If the first report would cover 
less than 30 (thirty) days, that report must be submitted on the next following quarter date. and ooverthe - 

extended period.
; 

In addition to all quarterly reports, a final report, containing the same infonnation. is due no eadier than 
twenty (20) days before the last day of the condition period and no later than the last day of the condition 
period. . 

Respondent must be assigned a probation monitor. Respondent must promptly review the terms and 
conditions of probation with the probation monitor to establish a manner and schedule of compliance. 
During the period of probation, Respondent must furnish such reports as may be requested, in addition to 
the quatterly reports required to be submitted to the Offioe of Probation. Respondent must coopemte fully 
with the monitor. 

Subject to asseftion of applicable privileges, Respondent must énswer fully, promptly and truthfully any 
. inquiries of the Office of Probation and any probation monitor assigned under these conditions which are 

‘ 
' ’directed to Respondent personally or in writing relating to whether Respondent is complying or has 

(10) IX 

(11) U 

complied with the conditions attached to the reproval. 

Within one (1) year of the effective date of the discipline herein, Respondent must provide to the Officg of 
Pmbation satisfactory proof of attendance at a session of the Ethics School, and passage of the test gwen 
at the end of that session. » 

LI No Ethics Sghool recommended. Reason: 

Respondent must comply with all conditions of probation imposed in the underlying briminal matter and 
must so declare under penalty of perjury in conjunction with any quarterly report to be filed with the Offlce 
of Probation.

‘ 

Respondent must provide proof of passage of the Multistate Professional Responsibility Examination 
(“MPRE”), administered by the National Conference of Bar Examiners, to the Offioe of Probation within one 
year of the effective date of the reproval.

' 

[I No MPRE recommended. Reason: 
The following conditions are attached hereto and incorporated:

D 
L] Financial Conditions 

I] Substance Abuse Conditions Law Office Management Conditions 

[I Medical Conditions 

F. Other Conditions Negotiated by the Parties: 

(Effective January 1. 2014) 
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ATTACHMENT TO 
STIPULATION RE FACTS, CONCLUSIQN S_ OF LAW AND DISPOSITION 

IN THE MATTER OF: KEVIN GANG LONG 
CASENUMBER: 14-O-01271 

FACTS AND CONCLUSIONS» OF’ LAW. 
Respondent admits that the following facts are true and that he is culpable of violations of the specified 
statutes and/or Rules of Professional Conduct. 

1. Respondenfs former clients, Haixia Miao and Shaoqun Jiang (“clients_” , retained respondent 
on April 29, 2010 to represent them regarding their applications for voluntary departure, asylum and for 
withholding of removal from the United States pending before the United States Department of J ustioc, 
Executive Office for Immigration Review, United States Immigration Court in case numbers A#087- 
875-087 and A#O87—875-O88 (“court”). 

2. The clients’ immigration merits hearing before the court was scheduled for May 3, 2012. 

3. In March 2012, several weeks before the merits hearing, the clients obtained their file from 
respondent and took it to another attorney whom they sought to retain (“Attomcy B”). Respondent did 
not formally withdraw from representation of the clients at that time. 

4. Attomey B filed motions with the court seeking to substitute into the clients’ cases and 
seeking a change of venue. The motion to substitute into the cases on behalf of the clients was made 
contingent upon the granting of the motion to change venue. 

5. On April 30, 2012, the court denied Attorney B’s motions because the merits hearing 
already scheduled for May 3, 2012. The court denied the motion to change venue and then also denied 
the motion to substitute into the case as it was contingent on the granting of the motion to change venue. 

6, On April 30, 2012, the court served respondent with a copy of the order denying Attorney B’s 
motions. . 

7_. Following the denial of Attorney B’s motions, respondent spoke with a ooun clerk who also 
informed him that Attomcy B’s motions to substitute into the clients’ cases and for change of venue ' 

were denied. 

8. Respondent did not inform the clients that respondent would not appear on their behalf at the 
May 3, 2012, merits hearing. Nor did respondent take any steps to prepare the clients for the mexits 
hearing.

. 

lO\



‘i 

9. On May 3, 2012, the clients appeared at the merits hearing. Respondent failed to appear and 
failed to arrange for another attorney to appear in his place. Accordingly, the clients appeared without 
counsel. At the merits hearing, and upon the oourt’s inquiry, the clients represented that they last spoke 
with respondent more than one month prior to the hearing and did not meet with him to prepare their 
case in advance of the merits heating. The court denied the clients’ applications for voluntary departure, 
asylum, and withholding of removal, and reserved appeal on their behalf. 

10. Respondent did not take any action on the clients’ behalf so as to avoid reasonably 
foresceable prejudice to them afier failing to appear at their May 3, 2012 merits hearing. 

1 1. Following the denial of their applications for voluntary departure, asylum, and withholding 
of removal, the clients retained another attorney (“Attorney C”) who appealed the decision of the court 
denying the clients’ applications for voluntary departure, asylum, and withholding of removal. 

12. The Board of Immigration Appeals (“BIA”) filed its Decision and Order (“Decision”) 
regarding theclicnts’ appeal filed by Attorney C on November 7, 2013. In the Decision, the BIA found 
that respondent provided inefiective assistance of counsel to the clients because he was required to be 
present at the clients’ scheduled merits heating on May 3, 2012 as the only attorney of record on that 
day, and respondent failed to appear at the merits hearing. 

‘CONCLUSIONS OF LAW:' 

13. By constructively terminating respondent’s employment prior to May 3, 2012, and thereafter 
by failing to appear on behalf of the clients at the merits hearings on May 3, 2012 in the matters pending 
before the United States Department of Justice, Executive Office for Immigration Review? United States 
Immigration Court in case numbers A#O87-875-087 and A#087-875-O88 despite the fact that respondent 
was the attorney of record in their matters, by failing to inform the clients that respondent would not 
appear on their behalf, by failing to take any steps to prepare the clients for the merits hearings, by 
failing to arrange for another attorney to appear in his place, by failing to take any action on the clients’ 
behalf afier failing to appear, and by failing to take any other steps to avoid reasonably foreseeable 
prejudice to the clients, respondent willfimlly violated Rules of Professional Conduct, rule 3-700(A)(2). 

AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCES. 
Harm (Std. l.5(t)).' Respondent's misconduct caused harm to his former clients as his failure to 

appear at their merits hearing and improper withdrawal from representation unnecessarily delayed their 
immigration matters and resulted in the denial of their applications for voluntary departure, asylum and 
for withholding of removal fiom the United States. Furthermore, the clients had to hire new counsel to 
appeal the court’s denial of their applications. (In the Matter of Casey (Review Dept. 2008) 5 Cal. State 
Bar Ct. Rptr. 117, 126 [client was significantly harmed where she had to hire new counsel and expen 
significant amount of attomey’s fees in an attempt to reclaim her p'ropcrty].) ' 

MITIGATING CIRCUMSTANCES. 
No Prior Discipline: Although respondent’s misconduct is serious, he is entitled to significant 

mitigation for more than 12 years of practice without a prior record of discipline at the time of the 
misconduct. (In the Matter of Riordan (Review Dept. 2007) 5 Cal State Bar Ct. Rptr. 41 [attorney’s 

» many years in practice with no prior discipline considered mitigating even when misconduct at issue 

|\1



was serious]; Hawes v. State Bar (1990) 51 Cal.3d 587, 596 [more than ten years of discipline-free
_ 

practice entitled to significant mitigation].) 

Prefiling Stipulation: Respondent has stipulated to facts, conclusions of law, and disposition in 
order to resolve his disciplinaxy proceedings prior to the filing of formal disciplinary charges, thereby 
avoiding the necessity of a formal proceeding and resulting trial, and saving State Bar and State Bar 
Court time and resources. (Silva- Vidor v. State Bar (1989) 49 Cal.3d 1071, 1079 [where mitigative 
credit was given for entexing into a stipulation as to facts and culpabi1ity].) By entering into this 
stipulation, respondent has accepted responsibility for his misconduct. 

AUTHORITIES SUPPORTING DISCIPLINE. 
The Standards for Attorney Sanctions for Professional Misconduct “set forth a means for determining 
the appropfiate disciplinary sanction in a particular case and to ensure consistency across cases dealing 
with similar misconduct and surrounding circumstances.” (Rules Proc. of State Bar, tit. IV, Stds. for 
Atty. Sanctions for Prof. Misconduct, std. 1.1. All further references to Standards are to this source.) 
The Standards help fulfill the primary purposes of discipline, which include: protection of the public, the 
courts and the legal profession; maintenance of the highest professional standards; and preservation of 
public confidence in the Iegal profession. (See std. 1.1; In re Morse (1995) 11 Cal.4th 184, 205.) 

Although not binding, the Standards are entitled to “great weigh ” and should be followed “whenever 
possible” in determining level of discipline. (In re Silverton (2005) 36 Cal.4th 81, 92, quoting In re 
Brown (1995) 12 Cal.4th 205, 220 and In re Young (1989) 49 Cal.3d 257, 267, Ih. 11.) Adherence to the 
Standards in the great majority of cases serves the valuable pmpose of eliminating disparity and assuring 
consistency, that is, the imposition of similar attorney discipline for instances of similar attorney 
misconduct. (In re Nancy (1990) 51 Cal.3d 186, 190.) If a recommendation is at the high end or low 
end of a Standard, an explanation must be given as to how the recommendation was reached. (Std. 1.1.) 
“Any disciplinary recommendation that deviates from the Standards must include clear reasons for the 
departure.” (Std. 1.1; Blair v. State Bar (1989) 49 Cal.3d 762, 776, fn. 5.)

b 

In determining whether to impose a sanction greater or less than that specified in a given Standard, in 
addition to the factors set forth in the specific Standard, consideration is to be given to the primary 
purposes of discipline; the balancing of all aggravating and mitigating circumstances; the type of 
misconduct at issue; whether the client, public, legal system or profession was banned; and the ‘ 

member’s willingness and ability to conform to ethical responsibilities in the future. (Stds. 1.703) and 
(0)-) 

Standard 2.15 applies to respondent’s violation of rule 3-700(A)(2), and provides as follows: 
“Suspension not to exceed three years or reproval is appropriate for a violation of a provision of the 
Business and Professions Code or the Rules of Professional Conduct not specified in these Standards.” 
The thrust of respondenfs misconduct in the present matter revolves amund tespondent’s failure to 
properly withdraw from the clients’ matter prior to the clients’ immigration merits hearing on May 3; 
2012; Respondent failed to inform" the clicnts that that he would not appear at their merits hearing on 
May 3, 2012. Respondent did not appear at the merits hearing on May 3, 2012, and did not anangc for 
someone else to appear in his place. After he failed to appear at the merits hearing on May 3, 2012, 
respondent did not take any steps to avoid reasonably foreseeable prejudice to the clients. 

Although it appears that the clients were seeking other counsel several weeks before their May 3, 2012 
merits heating, respondent knew that he remained the clients’ attorney of record after the court denied

8.-



Attorney B’s motions, and he knew or in the absence of gross negligence should have known that he 
was expected to appear on behalf of the clients on May 3, 2012 for the merits hearing. 

Respondent is entitled to significant mitigation for no prior record of discipline even though his 
misconduct is serious, and for cooperating with the State Bar in entering into this Stipulation, saving 
State Bar resources and accepting responsibility for his misconduct. Although respondent’s misconduct 
is aggravated by harm to the clients, respondent’s misconduct in the instant case only involves a single 
client matter. The mitigating factors suggest that discipline at the low end of the range indicated by 
Standard 2.15 is appropriate. Therefore, in order to protect the public, the courts and the legal 
profession, to maintain the highest professional standards, and to preserve public confidence in the legal 
profession, a discipline consisting of private reproval with conditions for one year as set forth hereinris 
appropriate. 

EXCLUSION FROM MCLE CREDIT 
Pursuant to rule 3201, respondent may gq receive MCLE credit for completion of State Bar Ethics 
School. (Rules Proc. of State Bar, rule 3201.)



(Do not write abové th_i_s_flne.) 

In the Matter of: Case number(s): 
Kevin Gang Long 14-O-01271 

SIGNATURE OF THE PARTIES 
By their signatures below. the parties and their counsei! as applicable, signify their agreement with each of the 
recitations and each of the terms and conditions of this Stipulation Re Facts, Conclusions of Law. and Disposition. 

[kg E _ 
Kevin Gang Long 

‘Dal Print Name 

ate Print Name 

V 

. erell N. McFar1ane 
Date Print Name 

(Effective January 1. 2014) 
Signature Page 
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[Q not J ‘Qggg this line.) 
In the Matter of: 

I 

Case Number(s):
V 

Kevin Gang Long 14-O-01271 

REPROVAL ORDER 
Finding that the stipulation protects the public and that the interests of Respondent will be sewed by any conditions 
attached to the reproval, IT IS ORDERED that the requested dismissal of oountslcharges, if any. is GRANTED without 
prejudice, and: 

E/ The stipulated facts and disposition are APPROVED AND THE REPROVAL IMPOSED. 
E] The stipulated facts and disposition are APPROVED AS MODIFIED as set forth below, and the 

REPROVAL IMPOSED. 

D All court dates in the Hearing Department are vacated. 

The parties are bound by the stipulation as approved unless: 1) a motion to withdraw or modify the stipulation. filed 
within 15 days after service of this order, is granted; or 2) this court modifies or further modifies the approved 
stipulation. (See rule 5.58(E) & (F), Rules of Procedure.) Otherwise the stipulation shall be effective 15 days after 
service of this order. 

Failure to comply with any conditions attached to this reproval may constitute cause for a separate 
proceeding for willful breach of rule 1-110, Rules of Professional conduct. 

j-/f— /s’ Wégéa Date GEOR E.S , D PRO TEM 
Judge of the State Bar Court 

(Effective January 1,2014) 
' owe’ 
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CERTIFICATE OF" SERVICE 

[Rules Proc. of State Bar; Rule 5.27(B); Code Civ. Proc., § 1013a(4)] 

I am a Case Administrator of the State "Bar Court of California. I am over the age of eighteen» 
and not a party to the within proceeding. Pursuant to standard court practice, in the City and 
County of Los Angelcs, on Januaxy 16, 2015, I deposited a uue copy of the following 
document(s): A

‘ 

STIPULATION RE FACTS, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DISPOSITION AND 
ORDER APPROVING ‘ 

in a sealed envelope for collection and mailing on that date as follows: 
. 

K4 by first-class mail, with postage thereon fully prepaid, through the United St‘at_es Po§tal 
Service at Los Angeles, California, addressed as follows: 

KEVIN c;'._ LONG
, 

223 E GARVEY AVE STE 208 
MONTEREY PARK, CA 91755 

by interoffice mail through a facility regularly maintained by the State Bar of California‘ 
addressed as follows: 

Sherell N. McFarl£me, Enforcement, Los Angeles 

Terrie Goldade, Probation, Los Angeles 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is true and correct. Executed in Los Angeles, Califomia, on 
January 16, 2015. 

Paul Barona 
Case Administrator 
State Bar Court



The document to which this certificate is affixed is a full, 
true and correct copy of the original on file and of record 
in the State Bar Court. 

ATTEST September 10, 2018 
State Bar Court, State Bar of Califomia, 
Los Angeles 

By 
34/ (.2Cl
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State Bar Court of California 
7 

‘
‘ 

Hearing Department 0 G ' NA Los Angeles L REPROVAL
‘ 

Counsel For The State Bar Case Number(s): 
. A 

‘ For Court use only 
16-H-11300 - 

Jamie Klm 
. 

‘ ' 

,,,,,,,t,,,m,_s,, LIC MA'I'I‘E 
845 S. Figueroa St. 
Los Angeles, CA 90017 
(213) 765-1182 

Bar# 281514 JUL 2 9 203 
STATE BAR, OOUR In Pro Per Respondent Cumrs OFFICE 

Kevin Gang Long ms ANGELES 
223 E. Garvey Ave., Ste. 208 
Monterey Park, CA 91755 
(626) 572-3689 

Submitted to: Settlement Judge 
Bar # 195523 

STIPULATION RE FACTS. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND 
m the Matte, of: DISPOSITION AND ORDER APPROVING 
KEVIN GANG LONG 

PUBLIC REPROVAL 
Bar # 195523 

I] PREViOUS STIPULATION REJECTED 
A Member of the State Bar of California 
(Respondent) 

Note: All information required by this form and an 
space provided, must be set forth in an attachme 
“Dismlssals.” "conclusions of Law,” "supporting Authority,” etc. 

A. Parties’ Acknowledgments: 

y additional information which cannot be provided in the 
nt to this stipulation under specific headings, e.g., “Facts,” 

(1) Respondent is a member of the State Bar of California, admitted June 4, 1998. 
(2) The parties agree to be bound by the factual stipulations contained herein even if conclusions of law or 

disposition are rejected or changed by the Supreme Court. 

(3) All investigations or proceedings listed by “ 
this stipulation and are deemed consolidated. Dismissed cha 
stipulation consists of 11 pages, not including the order. 

(4)‘ A statement of acts or omissions acknowledged by Respondent as cause or causes for discipline- is included under “Facts.” 

case number in the caption of this stipulation are entirely resolved by 
rge(s)lcount(s) are listed under ‘Dismissals! The 

"(Fr‘ecuveApnI 1. 2016) 
Removal



(Donotwriteabove1hisline.). 

(5) -Conclusions of law, drawn from and specifically referdng to the facts are also included under ‘Conclusions of Law". 

(6) The parties must include supporting authority for the recommended level of discipline under the heading 
'Supponi,n9 Authority.‘ 

(7) No more than 30 days prior to the filing of this stipulation. Respondent has been advised in writing of any pending investigationlproceeding not resolved by this stipulation, except for ctiminal investigations. 

(8) Payment of Disciplinary Costs—Respondent acknowledges the provisions of Bus. & Prof. Code §§6086.10 & 
6140.7. (Check one option only): 

C] Costs are added to membership fee for calendar year following effective date of discipline (pubfic 
reproval).

_ 

El Case ineligible for costs (private reproval). 
>14 Costs are to be paid in equal amounts prior to February 1 for the following membership years: three 

billing cycles following the effective date of discipline. (Hardship. special circumstances or other 
good cause per rule 5.132, Rules of Procedure.) If Respondent fails to pay any installment as described above, or as may be modified by the state Bar Court, the remaining balance is due and payable 
immediately. - 

L] Costs are waived in part as set forth in a separate attachment entifled ‘Partial Waiver of costs". 
[I Costs are entirely waived. 

(9) The parties understand that: 

(a) D A private reproval imposed on a respondent as a result of a stipulation approved by the Court prior to 
initiation of a State Bar Court proceeding is part of the respondent's official State Bar membership 
records, but is not disclosed in response to public inquiries and is not reported on the State Bars web 
page. The record of the proceeding in which such a private reproval was imposed is not available to 
the public except as part of the record of any subsequent proceeding in which it is introduced as 
evidence of a prior record of discipline under the Rules of Procedure of the State Bar. 

(b) D A private reproval imposed on a respondent after initiation of a State Bar Court proceeding is part of 
the respondent's official State Bar membership records, is disclosed in response to public inquiries - 

and is repotted as a record of public discipline on the State Bar's web page. 

(c) D A public reproval imposed on a respondent is publicly available as part of the respondent's official 
State Bar membership records, is disclosed in response to public inquiries and is reported as a record 
of public discipline on the State Bar's web page. 

B. Aggravating Circumstances [Standards for Attorney sanctions for Professional 
Misconduct, standards 1.2(h) & 1.5]. Facts supporting aggravating circumstances are 
required. 

(1) 

‘ 

Prior record of dlsclpllne 

(a) >14 State Bar Court case # of prior case 14-O-01271 

(b) Date pn‘or discipline effective February 6, 2015 

(c) >14 Rules of Professional Conduct! State Bar Act violations: 3-700(A)(2) 

(d) Degree of prior discipline private reproval. 
see attachment, page 8. 4 

(Effective Aptil 1. 2016) 
I 

Removal



(Donotwriteabovethh line.) . 

(e) [I If Respondent has two or more incidents of pn'or discipline, use space provided below or a separate attachment entifled “Prior Discipline.
- 

(2) Cl IntentlonalIBad Faithlmshonosty: Respondent's misconduct was dishonest. intentional. or surrounded 
by, or followed by bad faith. 

Misrepresentation: Respondent's misconduct was surrounded by, or followed by misrepresentation. D
. 

(3) 

(4) Concéalment: Respondent's misconduct was surrounded by, or followed by concealment ‘ 

(5) 

(6) 

Overmachlng: Respondent's misconduct was surrounded by. or followed by overreaching. 
Uncharged Violations: Respondent's conduct involves uncharged violations of the Business and Professions Code or the Rules of Professionai Conduct;

, 

El 

DCIEI 

Tmst Violation: Trust funds or property were involved and Respondent refused or was unable to account to the client or person who was the object of the misconduct for improper conduct toward said funds or 
Pf°Pe'*V- 

Harm: Respondent's misconduct harmed significantly a client, the public. or the administration of justice. 

(7) 

(3) 

(9) Indifference: Respondent demonstrated indifference toward rectification of or atonement for the consequences of his or her misconduct. 

(10) candorILack of cooperation: Respondent displayed a lack of candor and cooperation to victims of 
hislher misconduct, or to the State Bar during disciplinary investigations or proceedings. 

(11) 
» 

Multiple Acts: Respondent's current misconduct evidences multiple acts of wrongdoing. 

(12) Pattern: Respondent's current misconduct demonstrates a pattern of misconduct. 

(13) Restitution: Respondent failed to make restitution. 
(14) Vulnerable Victim: The victim(s)‘of Respondenfs misconduct was/were highly vulnerable. 

DDEIDD 

D 
[3 

El 

(15) No aggravating circumstances are involved. 

Additional aggravating circumstances: 

C. Mitigating Circumstances [see standards 1.26) 8. 1.6]. Facts supporting mitigating
_ circumstances are required. 

( 1) E] No Prior Discipline: Respondent has no prior record of discipline over many years of practice coupled 
with present misconduct which is not likely to recur. 

(2) [I No I-lama: Respondent did not harm the client, the public; or the administration ofjustioe. 
(3) El candorlcooperatlon: Respondent displayed spontaneous candor and cooperatio_n with the victims of 

hislher misconduct or to the State Bar during disciplinaty investigation and pnooeedmgs. 

E 1.2016 (ffective/April )

I



(Q not Mite above this line.)
I 

(4) Cl Remorse: Respondent prornpfly took objective steps demonstrating spontaneous remorse and recognition 
of the wrongdoing. which steps were designed to timely atone for any consequences of hislher misconduct. 

(5) Restitution: Respondent paid $ on in restitution to without the threat or force of 
disciplinary, civil or crimina! proceedings. 

Delay: These disciplinary proceedings were excessively delayed- The delay is not attributable to (6) 
Respondent and the delay prejudiced himlher. 

(7) Good Faith: Respondentacted with a good faith belief that was honesfly held and objectively reasonable. 

DEIEID 

EmotlonalIPhysical Difficulties: At the time of the stipulated act or acts of professional misconduct 
Respondent_ suffered extreme emotional difficulties or physical or mental disabilities which expert testimony 
would establish was directly responsible for the misconduct. The difficulties or disabilities were not the 
product of any mega! conduct by the member. such as illegal drug or substance abuse, and the diffioulties 
or disabilities no longer pose a risk that Respondent will commit misconduct. 

(8) 

Severe Financial stress: At the time of the misconduct, Respondent suffered from severe financial stress 
which resulted from circumstances not reasonably foreseeable or which were beyond hislher contra! and 
which were direcfly responsibfle for the misconduct. 

El (9) 

Family Problems: At the time of the misconduci, Respondent suffered extreme difficulties in hislher (10) 
personal life which were other than emotional or physical in nature. 

El 

(11) Cl Good Character: Respondent's extraordinarily good character is attested to by a wide range of references 
in the legal and general communities who are aware of the full extent of his/her misconduct. 

El Rehabilitation: Considerable time has passed since the acts of professional misconduct occurred 
followed by subsequent rehabilitation. 

(12) 

(13) D No mitigating circumstances are involved. 
Additional mitigating circumstances: 

Prefiling Stipulation, see attachment, page 9. 

D. Discipline: 

(1) 1:] Private reproval (check applicable conditions, if any, below) 

(a) D Approved by the Court prior to initiation of the State Bar Court proceedings (no public disclosure). 

(b) El Approved by the Court after initiation of the State Bar Court proceedings (public disclosure). 
.9!

. 

(2) Public reproval (check applicable conditions, if any, below) 

E. Conditions Attached to Reproval: 

(1) Respondent must comply with the conditions attached to the reproval for a period of one year. 

(2) Dating the condition period attached to the reproval, Respondent must comply with-the provisions of the 
State Bar Act and Rules of Professional Conduct. 

(Effective April 1 , 2016)
.
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(3) Within ten (10) days of any change, Respondent must report to the Membership Records Office of the ‘State Bar and to the Office of Probation of the State Bar of California (‘office qf Probation"). all changes of 
information, including current office address and telephone number. or other address for State Bar 
purposes. as prescribed by section 6002.1 of the Business and Professions Code. 

(4) 8 Within thirty (30) days from the effective date of discipline, Respondent must contact the offioe of Probation and schedule a meeting with Respondent's assigned probation deputy to discuss these terms and 
conditions of r_eproval. Upon the direction of the Office of Probation, Respondent must meet with the probation deputy either in-person or by telephone. During the reproval conditions period, Respondent must 
promptly meet with the probalion deputy as directed and upon request. 

(5) >14 Respondent must submit written quarterly reports to the Office of Probation on each January 10, April 10, 
July 10, and October 10 of the condition period attached to the reproval. Under penalty of perjury, Respondent must state whether Respondent has complied with the State Bar Act, the Rules of 
Professional Conduct. and all conditions of the reproval during the preceding calendar quarter. Respondent must also state in each report whether there are any proceedings pending against him or her in the State Bar Court and if so. the case number and current status of that proceeding. If the figst report would cover 
less than 30 (thirty) days, that report must be submitted on the next following quarter date, and cover the extended period. 

In addition to all quarterly reports, a final report. containing the same infonnation, is due no earlier than 
twenty (20) days before the last day of the condition period and no later than the last day of the condition 
period. 

(6) C] Respondent must be assigned a probation monitor. Respondent must promptly review the terms and 
conditions of reproval» with the probation monitor to establish a manner and schedule of compliance. During ‘the reproval conditions period, Respondent must fumish such reports as may be requested, in addition to 
the quarterly reports required to be submitted to the Office of Probation. Respondent must cooperate fully 
with the monitor. 

(7) E Subject to assetfion of applicable privileges, Respondent must answer fully, promptly and truthfully any 
inquiries of the Office of Probation and any probation monitor assigned under these conditions which are 
directed to Respondent personally or in writing relating to whether Respondent is complying or has 
complied with the conditions attached to the reproval. 

(8) E] Within one (1) year of the effective date of the discipline herein, Respondent must provide to the Officg of 
Probation satisfactory proof of attendance at a session of the Ethics School, and passage of the test given 
at the end of that session. 

No Ethics School recommended. Reason: Respondent "completed Ethics school on August 20, 
2015. 

(9) 1:] Respondent must comply with all conditions of probation imposed in the underlying criminal rpatter and must so declare under penalty of perjury in conjunction with-any quartedy report to be filed With the Offioe 
of Probation. 

(10) D Respondent must provide proof of passage of the Multistate Professional Responsibility Exarr_Iinati¢_':n. 
("MPRE"), administered by the Nationalconference of Bar Examiners, to the Office of Probatuon wnthm one 
year of the effective date of the reproval. 

E No MPRE recommended. Reason: Respondent passed the MPRE on March 19, 2016.. 
(11) E] The following conditions are attached hereto and incorporated: 

El Substance Abuse Conditions [I Law Office Management Conditions 
TE«ectiveApm1,2o1s) ' 

- 

'Rqma'
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[_'_l Medical Conditions [3 Financial Conditions 

F. other Conditions Negotiated by the Parties: 

"(‘Feaive April 1, 2015) 
Reproval



ATTACHIVIENT TO 
snr ATION RE CTS CON SION FLAW ISPOS o 

INTI-IBMATTER OF: - KEVIN GANG LONG 
CASE NUMBER: 16-H-11300 

FACTS AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW. 
Respondent admits that the following facts are true and that he is culpable of violations of the specified 
statutes and/or Rules of Professional Conduct. 

Case No. 16-H-1 1300 (State Bar Investigation) 

FACTS : 

1. On December 17, 2014, in case no. 14-O-01271, Kevin Gang Long (“respondent”) entered into a Stipulation Re Facts, Conclusions of Law and Disposition (“Stipulation”) for a private reproval, with the State Bar of California. - 

2. On Januaxy 16, 2015, the Hearing Department of the State Bar Court filed an Order approving the Stipulation for private reproval with conditions attached for a period of one year (“Reproval Order”). 

3. On January 16, 2015, the Hearing Dcpartmenfs Reproval Order was properly served by mail to respondent’s membership records address, 223 E. Garvey Ave., Ste. 208, Monterey Park, CA 91755. Respondent received the Reproval Order. 

4. The Reproval Order became effective on February 6, 2015. 

5. Pursuant to the Reproval Order, respondent was ordered to comply with the following relevant terms and conditions of reproval, among others: 

a. contact the Office of Probation of the State Bar of California (“OP”) within thirty 
(30) days from the effective date of discipline and schedule a meeting with 
respondenfs assigned probation deputy to discuss the terms and conditions of the 
reproval; and 

b. provide proof of passage of the Multistatc Professional Responsibility 
Examination (“MPRE”), to OP within one year of the effective date of the 
reproval. 

6. On January 28, 2015, Probation Deputy Teresa Laubscher of OP mailed a letter to respondent 
at his membership records address, 223 E. Garvey Ave., Ste. 208, Montcrey Park, CA 91755, reminding him of his reproval conditions. This letter was not returned as undeliverable or for any other reason. 

. 7. Respondent did not confact OP to schedule a meeting with his pmbation deputy, by the duc date ofMarch 8, 2015.



8. On March 18, 2015, fespondent contactcd OP to schedule a meeting with his probation 4 

deputy. 

9. On March 20, 2015, respondent attended his required meeting with his probation deputy as scheduled on March 18, 2015. 

10. On April. 10, 2015, respondent timely submitted his first Quarterly Report to OP. 
1 1. On July 6, 2015, respondent timely submitted his second Quarterly Report to OP. 
12. On October 2, 2015, respondent timely submitted his third Quarterly Report to OP. Attached 

to the Quarterly Report was a State Bar Ethics School certificate of completion. 

13. On October 2, 2015, respondent sent an e-mail to OP stating that he had received notice that he had failed the MPRE, which he had taken on August 15, 2015. Respondent also e-mailed OP a copy of his MPRE score report, which rcflected a score of 74. Respondent represented that he believed that he had missed the deadline to register for the November 7, 2015 administration of the MPRE. The deadline to register for the November 7, 2015 administration of the MPRE was September 22, 2015. 
14. On January 8, 2016, respondent timely submitted his fourth Quarterly Report to OP. 
15. On February 6, 2016, respondent timely submitted his Final Report to OP. 
16. On March 19, 2016, respondent took the MPRE. 
17. In April 2016, respondent provided OP with his March 2016 MPRE score report, which reflected a passing score of 86. ' 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW: 
18. By failing to timely contact OP to schedule a meeting with his probation deputy and timely submit proof of passage of the MPRE, respondent failed to comply with all the conditions attached to his 

disciplinary probation in willful violation of rule 1-110 of the Rules of Professional Conduct. 

AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCES. 
Prior Record of Discipline (Std. l.5(a)): Respondent has one prior record of discipline. 

Eifective February 6, 2015, in Case No. I4-O-01271, the Hearing Department ordered that respondent be privately reproved, subject to terms and conditions for one year. The violation of this order is the 
basis for this matter. In the prior matter, respondent constructively terminated representation of two 
clients, without notice, by failing to appear on behalf of his clients at their immigration hearings without 
taking any steps to prepare the clients for the hearings or anange for another attorney to appear in his 
place, in willful violation of rule 3.-700(A)(2) of the Rules of Professional Conduct. The misconduct 
occurred in 2012. The harm caused to respondent’s former clients was stipulated to as an aggravating 
factor and his lack of prior discipline. and prc-filing stipulation as mitigating factors.

8 .__J._,.



MITIGATING CIRCUMSTANCES. 
Prefiling Stipulation: By entering into this stipulation prior to the filing of a Notice of Disciplinary Charges, respondent has acknowledged his misconduct and is entitled to mitigation for recdgnition of wrongdoing and saving the State Bar significant resources and time. (Silva-Vtdor v. State Bar (1989) 49 Cal.3d_ 107], 1079 [where mitigative credit was given for entering into a stipulation as to facts and culpability]; In the Matter of Spaith (Review Dept. 1996) 3 Cal. State Bar Ct. Rptr. 511, 521 [where the attorney's stipulation to facts and culpability was held to be a mitigating circumstancc].) 

AUTHORITIES SUPPORTING DISCIPLINE. 
The Standards for Attorney Sanctions for Professional Misconduct “set forth a means for dctcnnining‘ the appropriate disciplinaxy sanction in a particular case and to ensure consistency acmss cases dealing with similar misconduct and surrounding circumstances.” (Rules Proc. of State Bar, tit. IV, Stds. for Atty. Sanctions for Prof. Misconduct, std. 1.1. All further references to Standards are to this source.) The Standards help fulfill the primary purposes of discipline, which include: protection of the public, the courts and the legal profession; maintenance of the highest professional standards; and preservation of public confidence in the legal profession. (See std. 1.1; In re Morse (1995) 11 Cal.4th 184, 205.) 
Although not binding, the standards are entitled to “great weight” and should be followed “whenever possible” in determining level of discipline. (In re Silverton (2005) 36 Cal.4th 81, 92, quoting In re Brown (1995) 12 Cal.4th 205, 220 and In re Young (1989) 49 Cal.3d 257, 267, fn. ll.) Adherence to the Standards in the great majority of cases serves the valuable purpose of eliminating disparity and assuring consistency, that is, the imposition of similar attorney discipline for instances of similar attomcy misconduct. (In re Naney (1990) 51 Cal.3d 186, 190.) If a recommendation is at the high end or low end of a standard, an explanation must be given as to how the recommendation was reached. (Std. 1.1.)‘ “Any disciplinary recommendation that deviates from the Standards must include clear reasons for the departure.” (Std. 1.1; Blair v. State Bar (1989) 49 Cal.3d 762, 776, fn. 5.) 
In determining whether to impose a sanction greater or less than that specified in a given standard, in addition to the factors set forth in the specific standard, consideration is to be given to the primary purposes of discipline; the balancing of all aggravating and mitigating circumstances; the type of misconduct at issue; whether the client, public, legal system or profession was harmed; and the mcmber’s willingness and ability to conform to ethical responsibilities in the future. (Stds. l.7(b) and 
(0)-) 

Standard l.8(a) provides that, “If a member has a single prior record of discipline, the sanction must be greater than the previously imposed sanction unless the prior discipline was so remote in time and the previous discipline was not serious enough that imposing greater discipline would be manifestly unjust.” Pursuant to Standard 1.8(a), the discipline in this matter can be greater than respondent's prior private 
rcproval, which was not remote in time and imposed for respondent’s serious prior misconduct. 
The most severe sanction applicable in this matter is Standard 2.14, which provides that actual 
suspension is the presumed sanction for failing to comply with a condition of discipline. The degree of sanction under Standard 2.14 depends on the nature of the violation and the member’s unwillingness or 
inability to comply with disciplinary orders.



Standard I.7(c) provides that, “If mitigating circumstances are found, they should be considered alone and in balance with any aggravating circumstances, and if the net eflbct demonstrates that a lesser . sanction is needed to fulfill the primary purposes of discipline, it is appropriate to impose or recommend ' 

a lesser sanction than what is otherwise specified in a given Standard. On balance, a lesser sanction is 
appropriate in cases of minormisconduct, where there is little or no injury to a client, the public, the 
legal system, or the profession and where the record demonstrates that the member is willing and has the 
ability to confotm to ethical responsibilities in the future.” 

Pursuant to Standard 1.7(c) a lesser sanction is appropriate here. Respondent violated two conditions of his reproval by scheduling a required meeting with his probation deputy 10 days aficr the due date and by submitting proof of passage of the MPRE two months after the due date. However, respondent has not shown an unwillingness or inability to comply with disciplinary orders as he attempted to comply with his rcproval condition by first taking the MPRE on August 15, 2015. Respondent did not pass the MPRE on this first attempt. When respondent received his score in October 2015, registration for the November-2015. administration of the MPRE had closed the month prior. Respondent also exhibited a 
willingness to comply with his reproval conditions by timely submitting four quarterly reports, timely submitting his final report, timely meeting with his probation deputy and timely attending State Bar 
Ethics School and passing the test administered at the end of the session. During the investigation of 
this matter, respondent acknowledged to the State Bar his failure to comply with his reprovalv conditions. Accordingly a deviation from Standérd 2.14 is appropriate in light of respondent’s belated compliance and participation in this matter. Therefore, a public rcproval, under Standard I.7(c) is appropriate to 
serve the pmposes of discipline. 

.

» 

This level of discipline is consistent with case law. In Conroy v. State Bar (1990) 51 Cal.3d 799, the attomey had received a private reproval with conditions, one of which was that he take and pass the 
Professional Responsibility Examination (hereinafter "PRE") within one year of the effective date of the 
reproval. The attorney failed to timely take and pass the PRE. However, he did tardily take and pass the PRE at_the next opportunity, which was found to be mitigating. The attorney defaulted at the Hearing 
Department. The misconduct was aggravated by the attomey’§ prior record of discipline, failure to 
cooperate in a State Bar Court proceeding and failure to appreciate the seriousness of the charges and 
reproval conditions. The Supreme Court ordered that the attorney be suspended for one year, stayed, and that he be placed on probation for one year with conditions, including 60 days actual suspension. 

Like the attorney in Conroy, respondent failed to comply with conditions attached to a prior private 
reproval by failing to timely take the MPRE. Respondent has the additional act of misconduct by failing 
to timely schedule a meeting with his probation deputy. Unlike the attorney in Conroy, respondent 
attempted to take the MPRE prior to the date on which proof of passage was due. Respondent’s 
misconduct is aggravated by his prior private rcproval, but respondent has not exhibited ‘the additional 
aggravation of failing to participate in a State Bar Court proceeding or failing to appreciate the 
scxiousness of his misconduct. In light of Conroy, the level of discipline in this matter should be less 
severe than that in Conroy. 

COSTS OF DISCIPLINARY PROCEEDINGS. 
Respondent acknowledges that the Office of Chief Trial Counsel has informed respondent that as of 
June 29, 2016, the prosecution costs in this maiter are $3,139. Respondent further acknowledges that 
should this stipulation be rejected or should relief from the stipulation be granted, the costs in this matter may increase due to the cost of further proceedings. 

10 :———n:.
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In the Matter of: Case number(s): KEVIN GANG LONG 16-H-1 1300 

SIGNATURE OF THE PARTIES 
« By their signatures below, the parties and their counsel, as applicable, signify their agreement with each of the recitations and each of the terms and conditions of th ' 

lation Re Facts. Conclusions of Law, and Disposition. ~~

~ Kevin Gang Long Date pondent’s Signature print Name " 

Date R _ondent's Ciounsel Signature ‘ Pfint Name 
A

H 

9/79/ 5 Jamie Kim Date why Trial Counsel's Signature pm: Name 

(Effective) Anti! 1, 2016 
signatute Page



(Do not write above this line.) 

In the Matter of: . Case Number(s): KEVIN GANG LONG 16-H-11300 

REPROVAL ORDER 
Finding that the stipulation protects the public and that the interests of Respondent will be s_erved by any conditions 
attached to the reproval, IT IS ORDERED that the requested dismissal of counts/charges, if any. is GRANTED without 
prejudice, and: 

C} The stipulated facts and disposition are APPROVED AND THE REPROVAL IMPOSED. 
E The stipulated facts and disposition are APPROVED AS MODIFIED as set forth below, and the REPROVAL IMPOSED. 
E] All court dates in the Heating Depattment are vacated. 

1. On page 2 of the stipulation, an “X” is inserted in the box preceding paragraph (9) (c). 
2. On page 2, paragraph (8), third box, 

a. delete the first and insert the following: 

Costs are awarded to the State Bar in accordance with Business and Professions Code section 
6086.10 and are enforceable both as provided in Business and Professions Code section 6140.7 
and as a money judgment. One third of the costs must be paid with Kevin Gang Long’s 
membership fees for each of the years 2018, 2019, and 2020. ~ 

b. delete the third senfence and insert the following: 

If Kevin Gang Long fails to pay any installment as described above, or as may be modified by 
the State Bar Court, the remaining balance is due and payable immediately. 

The parties are bound by the stipulation as approved unless: 1) a motion to withdraw or modify the stipulation, filed 
within 15 days after service of this order, is granted; or 2) this court modifies or further modifies the approved 
stipulation. (See rule 5.58(E) & (F), Rules of Procedure.) Otherwise the stipulation shall be effective 15 days after - 

service of this order. 

Failure to comply with any conditions attached to this reproval may constitute cause for a separate 
proceeding for willful breach of rule 1-110, Rules of Professional Conduct. My Zc1-2O,(L A) mm. 
Date ' ' ' ’ w. K“ s: McGIl-.L 

Judge the State Bar Court 

ffective '3 1, 2016
' 

(E AP" ) 

Removal Order 
Page; LL



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
[Rules Proc. of State Bar; Rule 527(3); Code Civ. Proc., § 101 3a(4_)] 

I am a Case Administrator of the State Bar Court of California. I am over the age of eighteen 
and not a party to the within proceeding. Pursuant to standard court practice, in the City and 
County of Los Angeles, on July 29, 2016, I deposited at true copy of the following document(s):. 

STIPULATION RE FACTS, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DISPOSITION AND ORDER APPROVING A 

in a sealed envelope for collection and mailing on that date as follows: 

K4 by first-class mail, with postage thereon fully prepaid, through the United States Postal 
Service at Los Angeles, California, addressed as follows: 

KEVIN G. LONG 
223 E GARVEY AVE STE 208 
MONTEREY PARK, CA 91755 

’ K4 by interofficc mail through a facility regularly maintained by the State Bar of California 
addressed as follows: 

Jamie J. Kim, Enforcement, Los Angeles 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is true and correct. Executed in Los Angeles, California, on 
July 29,2016. 

Jboéa//37. Jémzéo 
Julieta E. Gonza_1és / Case Administrator 
State Bar Court



The document to which this certificate is affixed is a full, 
true and correct copy of the original on file and of record 
in the State Bar Court. 

ATTEST September 10, 2018 
State Bar Court, State Bar of California, 
Los Angeles 

By ;2A./64:99 
c1e4/ ’



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

[Rules Proc. of State Bar; Rule 5.27(B); Code Civ. Proc., § 1013a(4)] 

I am a Court Specialist of the State Bar Court of California. I am over the age of eighteen and 
not a party to the within proceeding. Pursuant to standard court practice, in the City and County 
of Los Angeles, on October 17, 2018, I deposited a true copy of the following document(s): 

STIPULATION RE FACTS, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DISPOSITION AND 
ORDER APPROVING 

in a sealed envelope for collection and mailing on that date as follows: 

IX] by first-class mail, with postage thereon fully prepaid, through the United States Postal 
Service at Los Angeles, California, addressed as follows: 

KEVIN G. LONG 
223 E GARVEY AVE STE 208 
MONTEREY PARK, CA 91755 - 1863 

K4 by interoffice mail through a facility regularly maintained by the State Bar of California 
addressed as follows: 

Scott D. Karpf, Enforcement, Los Angeles 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is true and correct. Executed in Los Angeles, California, on 
October 17, 2018. 

<$JU‘/«J/LL:U\ /J/Uzui/D”) 
Elizabetl}/Alvarez 
Court Specialist 
State Bar Court


